M.ANANDAM & CO.,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Anjani Tiles Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Anjani Tiles Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than Financial Statements (Other Information)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of thi
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. :
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(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A”.

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Page 4 of 10



M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 000125

B. V. Suresh Kumar

Partner
Membership No.212187

UDIN:22212187AIFEFV8257

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30.04.2022
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of the Company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Anjani Tiles Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction Wlth our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. .
=
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. Anandam & Co.,

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0001255)

e

B. V. Suresh Kumar
Partner

Membership No.212187
UDIN:22212187AIFEFV8257

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30.04.2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
With reference to Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of the Company, we report that

i. Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management in a
periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the

~management and in our opinion, the coverage, frequency and procedure of such verification
is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not exceeding 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company is sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5.00 crore from banks on the
basis of security of current assets. Further, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii. The Company has not made investments, not provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

iv. The Company has not granted loans, not made investments and not given guarantees or securities
and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory

dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
Tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of Custom, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b)  There are no disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited on account

by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (vii) (b) of the Order is not g
Company.
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There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings and in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans
were obtained.

d) Onanoverall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, associates or Joint Ventures and hence,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally convertible) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination and enquiries with the management, no fraud
by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act is required to be filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order

is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an internal audit

system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv) (a) and

(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its

Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

b)  Inour opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit. However,

company has incurred cash loss amounting Rs.74.09 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial

year. — T
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xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directars and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. Inouropinion, the provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence
reporting under clause (xx) (a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that preparation of
consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0001255)

B. V. Suresh Kumar
Partner
Membership No.2121

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30.04.2022
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+ Anjatii Tiles Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

Rs. in lakh
- As at As at
Particulars Note | 34st March 2022 31st March 2021
I ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3a 6,864.75 7,024.33
{b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3b 5.99 -
(c) Other Intangible Assets 4 7.31 0.98
(d) Financial Assets
iy Other Financial Assets 5 538.43 196.42
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6 238.00 344.92
(f) Other Non-current Assets 7 18.23 0.0
{2} Current assets ‘
(a) Inventories 8 1,856.97 2,429.41
(b} Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 204.13 402.84
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 23.53 31.21
{iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 1 111.45 -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 5 2,212.95 2,210.04
(c¢) Other Current Assets 12 652.29 151.53
Total Assets 12,734.03 12,792.68
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 2,000.00 2,000.00
(b) Other Equity 14 (410.48) (879.49)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 7,330.99 5,983.77
{b) Provisions 16 10.59 7.92
(2) Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 2,286.28 3,897.87
(ii) Trade Payables 18
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises ) i
b)_ Total outstgndlng dues of credltor_s other than 1,320.65 1616.72
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 19.35 15.07
(b) Other Current Liabilities 20 169.03 144,59
(c) Provisions 16 7.62 6.13
{d) Current Tax Liabilities {net) 21 - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,734.03 12,792.58
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our Report of even date
For M Anandam & Co,

FRN:0001255

Lo You?,
B V Suresh Kuma

CVK Raju

Partner CEO & Director
M.No: 212187 DIN: 07337953
g p\;L/W\V
RK Pboja
Place: Hyderabad Company Secretary
Date: 30.04.2022 M.No: A41381

For and on behalf of the hoard

'PL

K Mohan Raju
Director
DiIN: 03537592

K Nagabhusﬁana Rao

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: AWFPK8691N




Anjani Tiles Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

Rs. in lakh
- Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note | 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
I Revenue from Operations 22 9,810.48 7,032.06
Il OtherIncome 23 381.78 237.78
Il Total Income (I+II) 10,192.26 7,269.84
IV EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 3,090.70 2,021.02
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress| 25 3563.04 1,218.92
Employee Benefits Expense 26 375.16 316.10
Finance Costs 27 326.42 417.94
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 384 468.61 473.14
Cther Expenses 28 4,999.88 3,369.95
Total Expenses (IV) 9,613.81 7,817.07
V  Profit/(Loss) Before Tax {lll-IV) 578.45 (547.23)
V]l Tax Expense:
1} Current Tax 29 - -
2) Deferred Tax 30 107.56 (74.29)
VIE  Profit/ (L.oss) for the Year (V-VI) 470,89 (472.94)
VIl Other Comprehensive Income
lterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans(net of tax) 31 (1.88) 0.65
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIl + VIII) 469.01 (472.29)
Earning per equity share (Face Value of Rs.10/- each)
Basic & Diluted 32 213 (4.88)
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financiat Statements.
As per our Report of even date
For M Anandam & Co, For and on behalf of theyboard
Chartered Accountant, L
FRN:0001258 Z: .1)1
\MM
y CVK Raju K Mohan Raju

B V Suresh Kum
Partner
M.No: 212187

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30.04.2022

CEQ & Director
DIN: 07337953

by Lnaes
K Pooja

Company Secretary
M.No: A41361

Director
DIN: 03537592

K Nagabhushana Rao
Chief Financial QOfficer
PAN: AWFPK8691N




Anjani Tiles Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 31st March 2022

A Equity Share Capital

Rs. In Lakh

Particul As at As at

articwars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,000.00 2,000.00
Add: Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 2,000.00 2,000.00
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,000.00 2,000.00
Other Equity Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings
Balance as at 1st April 2021 (879.49)
Profit / {Loss) for the Year 470.89
Other Compehensive Income (net of tax) {1.88)
Balance as af 31st March 2022 {410.48)
Balance as at 1st April 2020 (407.20)
Profit / {Loss) for the year (472.94)
Other Compehensive Income (net of tax) 0.65
Balance as at 31st March 2021 (879.49)

As per our Report of even date

For M Anandam & Co,
FRN:0001258

\'4/4’1 ©{ SECUNDERABAD
B V Suresh Kumarji=
A

Partner
M.No: 212187

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 30.04.2022

For and on behaif of the board

Lo,

CVK Raju
CEO & Director
DIN: 07337953

pt s
RK Pogcja

Company Secretary
M.No: Ad1361
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Anjani Tiles Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Year ended

31st March 2022

Year ended
31st March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Loss) before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amcrtization Expenses 468.63
Loss on sale of of Property, Plant and Equipment -
Bad debts written off 1.85
Liabilties no longer required 7.92
Finance Costs 326.42

578.45

804.82

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:
(Increase)} f Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets (974.47)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable & Other Liabilities (281.11})
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 1.64

196.87
57245

1,383.27

{484.62)

Cash Generated from Operations
- Direct Taxes Paid

808.65

Net Cash generated fromf{used in) Operating Activities

898.65

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (321.36)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment -

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

{321.36)

G. GASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings {379.23)
Praceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 114.88
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital -
Payment of Preference Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax -
Interest and Other borrowing charges Paid (320.60)

Net Cash generated from / (Used) Financing Activities

(584.97)

Net ingrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

(7.68)
31.24

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

23.53

473.14
0.07

(1.33)
417.94

(244.07)
1,057.39
(323.27)
{2,003.25)
{15.88)

(133.95)
0.18

447.72
412.52
1,000.00

(452.55)

(547.23)

880.82

342.59

{1,619.08)

{1,276.49)

{1,276.49)

{(133.77)

1,407.6¢

(2.57)
33.78

31.21

Notes to cash flow statement
1 Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents considered in the cash flow statement

of Cash Flows.

23.21
0.32
23.53

26.77
4.44
.21

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under with the ‘Indirect method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 Statement

3 Recongciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.
Outstanding Qutstanding
Particulars as at Cash flows l:z:;lca:sh as at
1st April, 2021 g 31st March, 2022

Long-term borrowings

a2 Bank 2,428.18 127.78 - 2,556.96

b Preference Shares 4,500.00 - - 4,500.00

¢ Un-secured Loans 1,170.00 393.00 - 1,563.00
Short-term borrowings 1,782.45 (765.14) - 997.31
Total liahilities from financing activities 9,881.63 {264.36) - 9,617.27
Significant Accounting Polictes Note 2
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date
For M Anandam & Co, Fer and on hehalf of the board
Chartered Accountants
FRN:0001255 ¢ Z a l\

u CVK Raju K Mohan Raju
B V Suresh Kumat\3- CEOQ & Director Director
Partner DIN: 07337953 DIN: 03537592
M.No: 212187 n' o
% & lﬁ\é :

Place: Hyderabad K Pooja K Nagabhushana Rao

Date: 30.04.2022 Company Secretary

M.No: A41361

Chief Financial Officer

PAN: AWFPKB691N




Anjani Tiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

1. Corporate Information

Anjani Tiles Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India having
its registered office situated at Eguvarajupalem, Chillakur Mandal, Gudur, SPSR Nellore
District — 524410, Andhra Pradesh, India. The Company was incorporated on 7 April, 2015,
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is engaged in
the business of manufacturing and selling of Vitrified Tiles. The Company is a subsidiary of
CERA Sanitaryware Limited.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors
on

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS and Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and relevant amendments rules issued thereafter notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also functional
currency. All the values have been rounded off to the nearest rupee in lakhs, unless
otherwise indicated.

2.3 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention except where
certain financial assets and liabilities have been measured at fair value as under:-

ems Measurement Basis ‘
Employee Defined Benefit Plans Plan Assets measured at fair value less

present value of defined benefit obligation
Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities Fair Value

2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

[a] Tangible Assets

i} Recognition and Measurement




Anjani Tiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which include
capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, except freehold land which is carried at historical cost.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of

property, plant and equipment.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

[ii] Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

[iii] Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of assets.

[ivl Depreciation/ Amortization

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment {other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method in respect of
plant and machinery and electric plant and installation and using the written down
value method in respect of other assets. Depreciation is generally recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortization on leasehold land is provided over the
period of lease.



Anjani Tiles Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted, if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation, the
management believes that its estimates of useful lives best represent the period
over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions / disposal is provided on a pro rata basis that is from /up
to the date on which asset is ready for use / disposed of.

[b] Capital work-in-progress

Projects under commissioning and other Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost
comprising of direct and indirect costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.
Depreciation on Capital work-in-progress commences when assets are ready for their
intended use and transferred from Capital work-in-progress to Tangible Fixed Assets.

[c] Intangible Assets

[i] Initial Recognition and Classification

[ntangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at
cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

lii] Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

fili]  Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their
estimated residual values over the estimated useful lives and is included in
depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss, The estimated useful
lives of computer software are considered not exceeding three years. Amortization
method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted, if appropriate.

{iv] Derecognition

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

[d]

2.5

2.6

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets.

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,
the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All
other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred and reported in finance costs.

Current versus Non Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/
non-current classification.

An asset/ liability is treated as current when it is :-

*Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal
operating cycle

*Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

* Expected to be realised/ settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
or :

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified 12
months as its operating cycle,

Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after
providing for obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. The cost of inventories
comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs including
manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost of raw materials, stores and spares, packing materials,
trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less any applicable selling expenses.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished products.

Excess/ shortages, if any, arising on physical verification are absorbed in the
respective consumption accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand
deposits with banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value where original maturity is three months or less.

. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is
adjusted for the effect of the transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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2.11

2.12

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or

- constructive) as a result of a past events and it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of :

* a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

* a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is
possible,

Centingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for
the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing adjusted net profit after
tax by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive

potential equity shares during the year.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Initial Recognition

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rupees (Rs.), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on
initial recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction.

Measurement at the Balance Sheet Date

Foreign Currency monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the Balance Sheet
date are restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined.
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2.13

2.14

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at
each Balance Sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are
recognised as income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligations have been satisfied, which
is once control of the goods and/or services has transferred from the Company to
the customer. Revenue is measured based on consideration specified in the contract
with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

a) Revenue related to the sale of goods is recognised when the product is delivered
to the destination specified by the customer, and the customer has gained
control through their ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all the
benefits from the asset.

b) Interest, Dividends and Other Income: Interest and dividend income is
recognised when the right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate.

Leases

The Company'’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings.
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii} the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use
asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the iease
before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial
“amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the
future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet
and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases,

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head
lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating
lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on
the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease transaction. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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2.15

Transition

The Company have not any leased assets hence there is no impact of transition
provisions

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences.
Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution
plan and is charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of
contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay contribution in addition
to its fixed contribution.

Defined Benefit Plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using ‘the Projected Unit Credit method’, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost.

Short-term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year
when the employees render the service. These benefits include salaries, wages,
performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The cost of such compensated absences is accounted as under :

{a) in case of accurulated compensated absences, when employees render the
services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Long-term Employee Benefits
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2.16

L]

Compensated absences and other benefits like gratuity which are allowed to be
carried forward over a period in excess of 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a non-current
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet
date out of which the obligations are expected to be settled.

Taxes on [Income

Income tax comprises Current and Deferred Tax. It is recognised in the Statement of
Profit or Loss except to the extent that it relates to business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims
from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs
from profit or loss in the financial statements. Calculation of current tax is based on
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the
asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are provided using the liability method on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised in full.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance
Sheet date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity/ other comprehensive
income is recognised in respective head and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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2.17

2.18

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceahle
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Equity, Reserves and Dividend Payments

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Retained earnings include current and prior period retained profits. All transactions
with owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distribution payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities

when the dividends have been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting
date.

Significant Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates
and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant
judgments, estimates and assumptions are required. Further information on each of
these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described
below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to
claims against the Company including legal, contractor, land access and other claims.
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By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain
future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence and potential
quantum of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments
and the use of estirmates regarding the outcome of future events.

b) Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are describhed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.  Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the controi of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

¢} Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assets recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit
(CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. The
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded securities or other available fair value indicators.

d) Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligations

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial vajuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.
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e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active market, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash
Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

f) Estimation of Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes
and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each Balance Sheet
date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may
differ from actual outcome which could lead to adjustment to the amounts reported
in the financial statements.

g) Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected credit loss rates (ECL). The Company uses judgments in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as investments in mutual funds,
certain other investments etc. at fair value at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole,

* Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unohservable.
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2.20

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liahilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

{b) Suhsequent Measurement
{i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

{ii) Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOC!)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

(iii)  FInancial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are
subsequently fair valued through Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
associated with its assets measured at amortised cost and assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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{d) Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

*The Company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financial
assets or

*Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company transfers the financial asset, it evaluates the extent to which it
retains the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. If the Company
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the Company shall derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets
or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Company shall continue to recognise the financial asset.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial assets. Where the Company retains control of the financial assets, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial
asset.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement: All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and in case of borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable cost.

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments. Changes in the amortised value of liability are
recorded as finance cost.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety
of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing
at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value and such value may vary
from actual realization on future date.
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v.

2.21

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Recent accounting pronouncements:

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st,
2022. Amendments applicable to the Company are given below:

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use - The amendments mainly prohibit an entity
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment, amounts received
from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended
use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have
any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - The amendments
specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The
amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) - The amendment clarifies which
fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

2.22 Unless specifically stated to be otherwise, these policies are consistently followed.
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Anjani Tiles Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

§ Financial Assets Rs. In Lakh
Sr. N As at As at
No |Farticulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A [Non-Current
Other Financial Assets
1 [Security Deposits with Government Companies 177.52 177.52
Margin money depaosits with the Bank 1.79 18.90
3 JIncentives Receivable from Government 359.12 -
Total 538.43 196.42
B [Current
Unsecured, Considered Good )
1 |Advances to Employees 3.86 0.95
2 [Incentives Receivable from Government 2,209.09 2,209.09
Total 2,212.95 2,210.04
6 Deferred Tax Assets (net) Rs. In Lakh
Sr. . As at As at
No| Farticulars 315t March 2022

31st March 2021

1 [Deferred Tax Assets
(Arising on account of timing difference)

{a) Depreciation Loss 669.23 970.82
(b} Leave Encashment/Gratuity 5.63 3.65
{c) Unused Tax Credits - 41.14
Total Deferred Tax Assets { A) 674.86 1,015.61
2 |Deferred Tax Liabilities
(Arising on account of timing difference)
Assets: Impact of difference between Tax Depreciation and
Depreciation / amortization charged for financial reporting 436.86 670.69
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities { B } 436.86 670.69
Deferred Tax Asset / [Liabilities) (A-B) 238.00 344.92
Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets (Net): Rs. In Lakh
. As at As at
Particulars 31stMarch 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Opening Balance - Deferred Tax Liability 344.92 270.86
Tax Income/(Expense) recognised in Profit or Loss (107.586) 74.29
Tax Income/(Expense) recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income 0.64 {0.23)
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (net) 238.00 344.92
Movements in Deferred Tax Assefs: Rs. In Lakh
Cn account of QOthers - Total
Depreciation Unused Tax Credits
Loss/Employee
Particulars Benefits
At st April, 2020 865.38 41.14 906.52
{Charged)/Credited:
to Profit or Loss 109.32 - 108.32
to Other Comprehensive Income (0.23) - (0.23)
At 1st April, 2021 974.47 41.14 1,015.81
(Charged)/Credited:
to Profit or Loss (300.25) (41.14) (341.39)
to Other Comprehensive [ncome 0.64 - 0.64
At 31st March, 2022 674.86 - 6574.86
Movements in Deferred Tax Liabilities: Rs. In Lakh
Assets : Impact of Others Total
difference
between Tax
Depreciation and
Particulars Depreciation /
amortization
charged for the
financial reporting
At 1st April, 2020 635.67 - 635.67
(Charged)/Credited:
to Profit or Loss 35.02 - 35.02
to Other Comprehensive Income - - -
directly to Equity - - -
At 1st April, 2021 670.89 - 670.69
{Charged)/Credited:
to Profit or Loss (233.83) - (233.63)
to Other Comprehensive Income - - -
directly to Equity - - -
At 31st March, 2022 436.86 - 436.86
7 Other Non-current Assets Rs. In Lakh
Sr. As at As at
No |Pticulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Unsecured considered good
1 jCapital Advances 17.33 -
2 |Deposit with others 0.90 0.90
Total 18.23 0.80
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8 Inventorles (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) Rs, In Lakhs
Sr. N As at As at
No [Particulars 34st March 2022 | 34st March 2021
1 |Raw Materials 448.97 406.30
2 |Work-in-Progress 24.60 25.10
3 |Stores and Spares 37197 624,78
4 |Packing Materlals 55.27 113.33
5 |Finished Goods 723.62 1,076,185
6 |Coal 233.34 183.75
Total 1,856.97 2,429.41
8.1 Inventories are hypothecated to secure working capital facility availed from The Federal Bank Ltd.
8 Trade Recelvables Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. " As at As at
No |Particutars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
2 |Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured - -
a) From Holdings Company 1.02 157.12
b) From Others 203,11 245.72
3 |Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses - -
Tofal 20413 402,84
9.1 Receivables are hypothecated to working capital facility availed from The Federal Bank Ltd.
9.2 Nolrade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
9.3 Trade Receivables ageing schedule As on March 31, 2022
Particulars - Duistanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Le:_;::;g &8 T;';:'rs ") 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Totat
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 198.42 5.71 - - - 204.13
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iil) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 198.42 5.71 - - - 204,13

As on March 31, 2021

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Le;sotnr::: 618 T‘;g?rs “| 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
(1} Undisputed Trade receivables ~ consldered good 383.38 19.46 - - - 402.84
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant ingrease in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered gocd - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in ¢redit risk - - - - - o
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 383.38 19.46 - - - 402.84
10 Cash and Cash Egulvalents Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. Particulars As at As at
No 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Balances with Banks 3. 2677
2 |Cashon Hand 0.32 4.44
Total 23.53 3.2
10.1 Balance with Banks includes Margin Money Deposits of Rs.22.23 lakhs (P.Y Rs.23.39 lakhs)
11 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. |Particulars As at As at
No 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 [Earmarked balances .
- Margin Money Deposits 111.45 -
Total 111.45 -
12 Other Current Assets Rs. In Lakhs
sr. As at As at
No_|Partieulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Advances other than Capital Advances
Other Advances
1 Advances to Suppliers 580.04 117.37
2 Prepaid Expenses 54.55 2415
3 Input Taxes Receivable 17.41 9.72
4 Rent Advance 0,29 0.29
Total 652,29 151.63
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Anjani Tiles Limited
Notes to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31st March, 2022

14  Other Equity Rs. In Lakhs
sr. Particulars As at As at
No J1st March 2022 | 31st March 2021

Retained eamings

1 |Balance as at the beginaing of ihe year {879.49) (407.20)
2 |Add: Profit / {Loss) for the'year 470.8% (472.94)
3 [AddiLess): Other Comprehensive lncome (nat of tax) {1.88) 0.65
Closing balance {410.48) (879.49)
14.1 This reserve represent the cumulative profits / (losses) of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
15 Borrowings Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. . As at As at
no | Particulars 3tst March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 [Term Loans {Secured)
From Banks 1,267.99 1,483.77
2 |Preference Share Capital
4,50,00,0C0 1% Cumulative Redaemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 4,500.00 4,500.00
[31st March, 2021, 4,50,00,000 1% Cumulative Redeemazble Preference Sharas of
Rs.10/- sach)
3 |Un-secured loans
From Holding Company - -
From Related Party 1,663.00 -
Total 7,330.99 5,983.77

15.1 Type and Nature of Borrowings

Rs. In Lakh

Amount outstanding .
. Effective arte of
Particulars As at As at interest
31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
i} Term Loans (including current maturities) 705.13 1,541,415 8.30%
i) Working Capital Term Loan (including current malurities) 778.64 888.00 9.25%
iii) GECL {including current maturitias) 444.00 - 7.75%
iv) Dropline OD ((including current maturities & interest for March 22} 622.19 - 7.75%
Total 2,556.96 2,429.19

a) The above loans represent, foans taken from The Federal 8ank Ltd which are secured by Industrial Lang admeasuring of 42,86 acres situated at
Eguvarajupalem Village, Chillakur Mandal, Gudur, SPSR Nellore dist, Andhra Pradesh and Factory Buiidings and other fixed assets purchased gut
of the term lean procaeds.

b) Repayment Scheduls Rs. InLakh
Name of the Bank FY 202223 FY 2023-24 FY 202425 FY 2025-26 | FY 2026-27
The Federal Bank Ltd 1,288.95 618.02 358.85 152.82 138.32

15.2.a The reconciliation of the number of Preference Shares outstanding and amou
and 31st March, 2021

nt of preference share capital as at 31st March, 2022,

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Particulars Amount Amount
Number of Shares Rs. In Lakhs Number of Shares Rs. In Lakhs
Shares outstanding at 1he beginning of the vear 4,50,00,000 4,500.00 4,50,00,00¢ 4,500.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,50,00,000 4,500.00 4,50,00,060 4,500.00
15.2.b Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares are set out below :
As at 315t March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
icut
Paticuiars Number of Shares [ %ofholding | Number of Shares| % of holding
a) CERA Sanitaryware Limited, Holding Company 1,78,00,000 35.56% 2,42,30,000 §3.84%
b) Anjani Vishnu Holdings Limited 2,72,00,000 60.44% 2,07,70,000 48.16%

18,2.¢ Cenditions of Redemption:
a) The preference shares shall be redeemsd cn completion of 7 years from the date of alfolment. The Board of Directors of the Company are
autherised to redeem the said preference shares before due date by giving one month prior nolice to the shareholders of the Company

b} Repayment Schedute :
Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2029-30 Total
a) No. of shares 1,40,00,000 50,006,000 2,60,00,000 4,50,06,000
b} Amount (Rs. In Lakh) 1,400.00 500.00 2.600.00 4.500.00
16 Provisions Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. " As at As at
No Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 [Non-Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity - -
Provision for Leave Encashmant 10.59 7.92
Total 10.59 7.92
2|Current
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 7.62 6.13
Total 7.62 6.13

Refer Note 31 on Employee Benefits
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17

Borrowings

Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. Particulars As at As at
No 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Loans Repayable On Demand
Secured
Working Capital Loans
From Banks 997.31 1,782.45
2 (Un-secured
From Holding Company - 1,170.00
3 |Current maturities of Long Term Debt 1,288.97 945.42
Total 2,286.28 3,897.87

17.1 Working Capital facilities avaited from The Federal Bank Ltd are secured by hypothecation of entire inventaries and bock debts and collateral
security of land admeasuring 42.86 acres situated at Eguvarajupalem Village, Chillakur Mandal, SPSR Nellere, Andhra Pradesh.

18  Trade Payables Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. As at As at
No Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1{Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - .
2|Others 1,320.65 1,616.72
Total 1,320.65 1,616.72

Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are given in Note No.38.

18.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

18.1 To the extent of information available with the company there are no dues 1o Micro and Small Enterprises. The disclosures are required under

Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than
- - h :
1 Year 1-2years |2 3_ years | More than 3 years Total
i) MSME - - - - -
i} Others 131268 7.97 - - 1,320.65
i) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -
V) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - -
Total 1,312.68 7.97 - - 1,320.65
As on March 31, 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than :
1 Year 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
i) MSME 1,616.72 - - - 1,616.72
ii) Others - - - - -
i) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -
1V} Disputed Dues-Others - - - - -
Total 1,616.72 - - - 1,616.72
18 Other Financlal Liabilities Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. . As at As at
No | Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Interest Payable to Related party 3.29 -
2 [Interest accrued but not due 217 -
3 |Expenses Payable 13.89 15.07
Total 19.35 15,07
20 Other Current Llabllities Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. - As at As at
No | Pariculars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Provision for expenses 4.14 -
2 |Advance from Customers 16.53 32,32
3 |Statutory Dues 148.36 112.27
Total 169.03 144.59
21 Current Tax Liabilities (net) Rs. In Lakhs
sr. N As at As at
No Particutars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
1 |Provision for Income Tax { Met of Advance Tax) - B
Total - -
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22 Revenue from Operations Rs. In Lakhs
sr. . Year ended Year ended
No Particulars st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

1 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Products

Vitirfied Tiles 9,376.03 6,652.81

2 Qther Operating Revenue
Sale of by-products 434,45 379.45
Total 9,810.48 7,032.06

221 Disaggregated Revenue Disclosures are not applicable since the Company deals in one product i.e., manufacturing and selling of

Vitrified Tiles.

22.2 Trade Receivables and Contract Balances

a} The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable,
b) A receivable s 2 right to consideration that is unconditional upen passage of time. Trade receivables are presented net of impairment

in the Balance Sheet.

22.3 Disclosures relating to pending performance obligations are not given since there are no pending obligations.

AY

23 Other Income Rs. In Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
3:, Particulars st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1 Interest Income from Financial Assets” 7.60 11.39
2 Sales Tax Incentive 359.12 222.39
3 Liabilties no langer required 7.92 1.33
4 Insurance claim received 7.14 2.67
Total 381.78 237.78
" Includes interest on Margin Money Deposits and Additional Consumption Deposits.
24 Cost of Materials Consumed Rs. In Lakhs
sr. Particulars Year ended Year ended
No 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening Stock 519.63 375.89
Add:  Purchases 3,075.31 2.164.66
Sub-fatal 3,594.94 2,540.65
Less: Closing Stock 504.24 519,683
Total 3,090.70 2,021,02
25 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress Rs. In Lakhs
Sr . Year ended Year ended
nNo | articulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1 Closing Inventories
Finished Gogds v 723,62 1,076.16
Work-in-Progress 24,60 25.10
748.22 1,101.26
2 Cpening Inventories
Finished Goods 1,076,168 2,284.81
Work-in-Progress 25.10 35.5¢
1,101.26 2,220.18
3 {Increase)/ decrease
Finished Geods 352.54 1,208.65
Work-in-Progress 0,50 10.27
Net {Increase)l/decrease in Inventories 353.04 1,218.92




26 Employee Benefits Expenses Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. Particulars Year anded Year ended
No 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
1 Salaries, Wages and Other Employee Benefils 321.28 269,84
2 Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 2559 21.95
3 Graluity Expenses 5,00 5.46
4 Staff Welfare Expenses 22,89 18.85
Total 375.16 316.10
27 Finance Costs Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. Year ended Year ended
No Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest and Finance charges on Financial Liabilities not at fair value through
Profit or Loss
i) Term Loans 184.15 200,89
i) Working Capital Loans 133,04 208.49
[[7)] Interest on un-secured loans 3.65 -
iv}  Other Borrowing Costs 5.58 8.56
Total 326.42 417.94
28 Other Expenses Rs. In Lakhs
Sr. : Year ended Year ended
No | articulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
1 Consumption of Stores 1,226.02 692,04
2 Power and fuel 2,886,01 1,969.25
3 Woages - Contract Labour 519.31 390.68
4 Repairs and maintenance
- Building 1.30 0.47
- Plant & Equipment 28.13 2812
- Other Assets 7.49 4.49
5 Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 9.53 8.79
6  Advertisemant Expenses 0.15 -
7 Insurance 18.06 14.82
8 Rent, Rates and taxes 22.25 22,53
9 Payment to Auditors:
Statutory Audit 1.40 1.25
Tax Audit 0.40 0,35
GST Audit - 0.25
Qther Matters including Limited Review 0.53 0.58
10 Legal and professional charges 66.85 59.79
11 Printing and Stationery 10.84 11.24
12 Office Maintenance 11.37 7.44
13 Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.07
14 Vehicle Running Expenses 153.92 136.67
15 Bank Charges 241 5.46
16  Material Damage 8.02 -
17 Miscellaneous Expenses 25.89 15,66
Total 4,999.88 3,369.95
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29 Current Tax Rs. In Lakhs
5r. Particulars Year ended Year ended
No 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2024
1  Current Tax . -
2 Add/(Less): Adjustment for Current Tax of Prior Periods - -
Total . -

Recongiliation of the Income Tax Expense (Current tax + Deferred tax) amount considering the enacted Income Tax Rate and
effective Income Tax rate of the Company as follows.

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
3ist March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Accounting Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax 578.45 (547.23)
30 Deferred Tax Rs. In Lakhs
8r. Particulars Year ended Year ended
No 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
] Deferred Tax Liability on account of difference in WDV (233.83) 35.02
2 Deferred Tax Asset on account of Unabsorbed depreciation 301.58 (114.10)
3 Deferred Tax Asset on account of employee benefits {1.34) 4.79
4 Unused tax credits 41.15 -
Total 107.56 (74.29)
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31 Notes to Employee Benefits

Defined Centribution Plans
Provident Fund: During the year, the Campany has recognised Rs.22.66 lakh (2020-21: Rs.18.95 lakh) as contributien {0 Employee Provident Fund in the Statement of
Profit and Loss (Refer Note No.26).

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity;
Each employee rendering continuous service of 5 years or more is entitled to receive gratuity amount equal to 15/26 of the monthly emcluments for every completed year of
service subject lo maximum of Rs.20 Lakhs at the time of separalion from the company.

Other long-term emplovee benefits

Leave Encashment:
Each emplayee is entitied to get 30 eamed leaves for each completed year of service. Encashment of earned leaves is allowed during service leaving a minirmum balance of 30
days subject to maximurm accumulation up to 60 days, In addition, each employee is entilled to get 7 casual leaves at the end of every year.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the fund status and amounts recognised in the balance
sheet for the respective plans:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: :
Rs. In Lakh

Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Defined banefit obligation at the beginning 18.81 15.63
Cumrent service cosl 3.68 4.45
Interest expense 1.32 1,00
Benefits paid - b 1.40
Actuarial (gain}/ loss on obligations - OCI 2.51 (0.87)
Defined benefit obligation at the end 26,32 18.81
Components of Other Comprehensive Income Rs. In Lakh
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2029
Acurlial {gain} / loss on emplyee benefits 2.51 (0.87)
Less: Deferred Tax @ 26% (0.64) 0.23
Acurtial (gain) /loss on emplyee benefits (net of tax} 1.87 {0.64)
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation: Rs, In Lakh
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 24,78 -
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning 18.81 15,63
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet at the beginning 5.87 15.63
Fair value of plan assets at the end (28.03) -
Defined benefil obligation at the end 26.32 18.81
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet at the end (1.71) 18.81

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity are shown below:

Particulars

31st March 2022

3ist March 2021

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate

7.36%
4%

7.01%
4%

Economic and Demographic Assumptions

Economic Assumptions

Estimates of fulure compensation increases considered take into 2ccount the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at 31 March 2022 for the estimated term of the obligations.

Demographic Assumptions

Parti¢ulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Relirement Age 58 58
Mortality table IALM (2012-14) IALM {2012-14)
Attrition rate 5% 5%




Amount recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss: Rs. In Lakh
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Current service ¢ost 3.68 4.45
Net interest expense 1.32 1.00
Remeasurement of Net Benefit Liability/ Asset 2.51 {0.87)
Amount recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 7.51 4.58
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income: Rs. in Lakh
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 2.51 {0.87)
Retum on plan assels (excluding amounts included in net interest

expense) - .
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for year ended 2.5 (0.87)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans Rs. In Lakh
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Discount rate {in %) 7.36 7.01
Salary Escalaticn {in %) 4.00 4.00
Rate of return in plan assets (in %) 6.62 4.03
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) 19.55 18,79

A quantitative sensltivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31st March 2022 is as shown below:

Rs. In Lakh

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2022

31st March 2022

Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

Discount rate

Salary escalation

Assumed Attrition Rate

1% increase

1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit cbligation

10.97)

1,09

1.26

(1.15)

0.17

{0.19)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31st March, 2021 Is as shown-bolow:

Rs. In Lakh

Parliculars

31st March 2021

31st March 2021t

31st March 2021

Assumptions

Discount rate

Salary escalation

Assumed Aftrition Rate

Sensilivity Level

1% increase

1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation

(0.78)

(0.76)

0.97

{0.88)

0.09

{0.11}

The sensilivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extra

occurring at the end of the reporting period.

polates the impact on definad benefit ohligafion as a result of reasonable ¢hanges in key assumptions
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32 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(ioss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by

the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit /{loss) atiributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on

cenversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Rs. In Lakh
Sr. Particulars Year ended Year ended

No 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
1 {Net Profit / {Loss) 470.89 {472.94)
Less: Cumulative Preference Dividend 45.00 45.00
Net Profit f {Loss) atiributable to the equity Sharehoclders (A) 425.89 {517.94)
2 |Weighled average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the period (B) 2,00,00,000 1,06,15,260
3 [Nominal value of Equity Shares (Rs.} 10.00 10.00
4 |Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.} (A/B) 213 (4.88)

* Since there are no dilutive potential equity shares, the diluted profit / (loss) per equity share is the same as the basic profit f {ioss) per

equity share.
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33 Related party disclosures
a) Names of related parties and description of relationship
Name of the related party Relationship
CERA Sanitaryware Limited Holding Company
Anjani Vishnu Heldings Limited Investor Company
Hitech Print Systems Limited Subsidiary of Investor Company
Vennar Ceramics Limited Associate of Investor Company
Key Management Personnel
r, Venkata Krishnam Raju Chintalapati Chief Executive Officer & Non-Executive Director
Mr. K Nagabhushana Rao Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Mohammed Hafiz Mansoor Company Secratary (Up to 12.04.2021)
Ms.R K Pooja Company Secretary (From 01.08,2021)
Mr. Atub Sanghvi Non-Executive Director {Up to 21.10.2021)
Mr, Parthiv Aniruddh Dave Non-Executive Director (From 10.12.2021)
Mr. R B Shah Non-Executive Director
Mr. Abbey Vincent Rodrigues Nen-Executive Direstor (Up to 20.12.2021)
Mr. Premchand Mangilal Surana Nen-Executive Director (From 26.02,2022)
Mr. Mahesh Kumar Taparia Non-Execuiive Directer (From 20.10.2021 to 26.02.2022)
Mr. Surendra Singh Baid Independent Director
Mr. Parankusam Srinivas Ranganath Independent Direclor
Mr. Kalidindi Mohan Raju Non-Executive Director
b} Transactions during the year with Related Parties:

Transactions during the year:

Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars 3ist March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
A} CERA Sanitaryware Limited, Holding Company
Sale of Goods (Net) 4,562.87 4,916,88
Loans repaid (1,170.00) -
Advance Paid - (1,062.00)
Issue of Share capital (Equity) - 510,00
Balance Cutstanding (Advance Received) - (1,170.0C)
Balance Outstanding (Receivables) 1.02 157.12
B) Anjani Vishnu Holdings Limited, Investor Company
Issue of Share capital (Equity) - 490,00
Purchases 3346 -
Loans Received 1.653.50 -
Loans Repaid (20.50) -
Other Services 6.1 4.50
Interest Expenses 3.29
Bzlance Qutstanding (Loans) - Including Interest (1,566.29) -
Balance Outstanding {Purchases) (10.61) -
Balance Qutstanding {Services) {0.49) (0.49}
C) Hitech Print Systems Limited, Subsidiary of Investor Company
Other Services - 0.10
Balance Oulstanding - (0.10}
D} Vennar Ceramics Limited, Associate of Investor Company
Sale of Goods (net) - 0.24
Purchases 3.94 0.22
Balance Cutstanding - -
E} Key Management Personnel .
Remunearation paid
Mr. Venkata Krishnam Raju Chintalapati §4.12 45.51
Mr. K Nagabhushana Rao 8.40 7.18
Ms. Richa Bhamotra - 0.88
Mr Mohammad Hafiz Mansoor 0.07 1.23
Mr.R K Pooja 1.60 -
Consultancy Charges
Mr. Kalidindi Mohan Raju 14.52 12.21

¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales {0 and purchases from relaed parties are made on terms equivalent fo those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the yearend are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2021: INR Nil). This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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34 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Rs. In Lakh
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 2,751.38 2,406.46 2,751.38 2,406.46
Trade receivables 204.13 402.84 204.13 402.84
Cash and cash equivalents 23.53 31.21 23.53 31.21
Other Bank Balances 111.45 - 111.45 -
Total 3,090.49 2,840.51 3,020.49 2,840.51
Financial Liabilities
Long term borrowings 7,330.99 5,983.77 7,330.99 5,983.77
Short term borrowings 2,286.28 3,897.87 2,286.28 3,897.87
Trade Payables 1,320.65 1,616.72 1,320.65 1,6186.72
Other Financial liabilities 19.35 15.07 19.35 15.07
Total 10,957.27 11,513.43 10,957.27 11,513.43
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35 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assels and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 34st March, 2022; Rs. In Lakhs
Fair value measurement using
P Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
articulars . A .
active markets | observable inputs [ unobservable inputs
. {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured at amortised cost;
Other finan¢ial assets 215t March, 2022 2,751.38 - - 2,751.38
Trade receivables 31st March, 2022 204.13 - - 204.13
Cash and cash equivalents - 31st March, 2022 23.53 - - 23.53
Other Bank Balances 315t March, 2022 111.45 - - 111.45
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31st March, 2021; Rs. In Lakh
Fair value measurement using
Parti Date of valuation Total Quoted pricas in Significant Significant
articulars . . N
aclive markets | observable inputs | unobservable inputs
(Level 1} {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at amortised cost:
Ciher financial assets 31st March, 2021 2,406.45 - - 2,406.46
Trade receivables 31st March, 2021 402,84 - - 402.84
Cash and cash equivalents 31st March, 2021 31.21 - - 31.21
Other Bank Balances 31st March, 2021 - - - -
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 315t March, 2022: Rs. In Lakh
Fair value measurement using
Particulars Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets | observable inputs | unobservable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured at amortlsed cost:
Long term borrowings 31st March, 2022 7.330.99 - - 7,330,99
Shert term borrowings 31st March, 2022 2.286.28 - - 2,286.,28
Trade Payables 31st March, 2022 1,320.65 - - 1,320.65
Other Financial liabililies 31st March, 2022 19.35 - - 19.35
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for llabilities as at 31st March, 2021: Rs. In Lakh
Fair value measurement using
Particulars Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets | observable inputs | unobservable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3}
Liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Long term borrowings 31st March, 2021 5,983.77 - - 5,983.77
Short term borrowings 31st March, 2021 3,807.87 - - 3,897.87
Trade Payables 31st March, 2021 1,616.72 - - 1,616.72
Other Financial liabilities 31st March, 2021 15.07 - - 15.07

‘The management assessed that fair value of financlal assets and %iabilities significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely due o the short term maturities
of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and Tabililies is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction betwaen willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Company determines fair values of financial assets or liabilittes by discounting the contractual cash inflows / outflows using prevailing interest rates of financial
instruments with similar terms. The initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilties is at fair value, . Furiher, the subsequent measurements of all
assels and liabilifies is at amortised cost, using effective interest rate method.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair values:-

- The fair value of the Company's interest bearings borrowings are determined using discount rate that reflects the entity’s discount rate at the end of the reporling
peried. The own non-performance risk as at the reporting period is assessed to be insignificant,

For other non-current financial assets and liabilities the fair value Is the same as the amorlized cost, measured using the discount rate at the lime of initial

recognition of financial assels and liabifities

A one percent change in the unobserved inputs used in fair valuation of level 3 Assets and liabilities does not have a significant impact in its value.

Fair value of financial assets and financial llabilities

v

The carrying value of the current financial assets and current financial liabilities are considered to be same as their values, due fo their short-term nalure. The non-
current borrowings and securities deposits are carried at amortized cost which is considered as their fair value.
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38 Financial risk management obJectives and policies

Financial Risk Management Framework
The Company's principal financial liabilities, olher than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, frade and cther payables, The main purpose of ihese financial liabilities is 1o finance

the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financiat assels include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive direclly from its operations,

The Company is exposed primarily to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market risk (fluctuations in foreign cusrency exchange rates and interest rate), which may adversely impact the fair
value of its financial instruments. The Company assesses the unprediclability of the financial environment and seeks lo mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial performance of
the Company.

A. Credit RIsk

Credit sisk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss, Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct
risk of default and the risk of delerioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Cradit fisk is controlled by analyzing credit imits and creditworthiness of customers on a
continucus basis to whom the credit has been granted after ebtaining necessary approvals for credit, Financial instruments that are subject 1o concentrations of credit fisk principally
consist of trade receivables, invesiments, derivative financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets, None of the financial instruments of the
Company result in material concentration of credit fisk.

Expasure to credit fisk:
The carrying amount of financlal assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars As at 31 March, 2022 | As at 31 March, 2021
Othar financial assets 2,761.38 2,406.46
Trade receivables 204.43 402.84
Cash and cash equivalents 23.53 21
Other bank balances 14145 -

Trade receivables:
Ind AS requires expecled credit losses 1o be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses al each date of statements of financial position whether a financiat asset is

impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal ta the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal 1o he lite ime expecled credit losses if the credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The company s not expecting any credit loss allowanca which is calculated on life tme expected credit losses for
frade receivables. Credit loss provision on security ¢eposits is taken as 12 months expected credit foss and no loss is expecled as at 31st March, 2022 and 34st March, 2021.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and others is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance with the Company's policy, Investments of surplus funds are made anly
with approved counlerparties and within credit Jimils assigned to each counterparty. Counterparly credit limits are reviewed by the Gompany's Board of Directars on an annual basis, and
may be updated throughout the year subject %o approval of the authorised person. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
counterparty’s potential failure ta make payments.

B, Liquldity Risk )

Liquidity risk refers 1o the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to mainlain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are
available for use as per requirements. The Company manages liquidity sisk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faclities and reserve bomowing facillies, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of finaneial assets and fiabilities.

The table below summarises the maturily profie of the Company's financial liabiliies based on conlractual undiscounted payments

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years »5 years Total
Year ended 31st March, 2022
Bomrowings 997 31 A72.68 916.27 4,731.01 280000 9617.27
Trade payables - 1,320.65 - - : - 1,320.65
Cther financial labikties - 19.35 - - 18.35
Year ended 315t March, 20214
Borrowings 1,782.45 202.01 646.19 7.243.99 - 9,881.64
Trade payables - 1,616.72 - - - 1,616.72
Other financial liabilities - 15.07 - - 15,07




Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number ¢f counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activiies in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would
cause thelr ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions, Cancentrations indicate the relative sensiivity of the
Cempany's performance to developments affecting a parcular industry. -

In order to aveid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's pelicies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified pertfolio. lentified
concentrations of credlt risks are conirolled and managed accaroingly. Seleclive hedging is used within the Company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry
lavels.

Callateral : NIl

C. Market Risk
Marke! risk is the sisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insirument wili fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of fisk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodiy fisk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits elc.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relatas primarily to the Company's lang term and short term borrowings. The impact on the enlity due to any Interest rate fluctuation is given below:

Rs. in Lakh

Increasefdecrease In | Effect on profit before
bas[s points tax

31st March, 2022
INR +50 {24.20)
INR -50 24.20
31st March, 2021
INR . +50) {22.49)
INR -50 22.49

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensilivity analysis is based on the cusrently abservable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in
priar yaars,

Forelgn currency rlsk .

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate bacause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to tha risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominatedin a foreign currency). The exposura of entity to
foreign currenty risk is very imited on account of imited transactions in foreign cumency,
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37 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to

the equity holders of the company. The pamary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objeclive of the Companies capital management is
fo ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value. The Company manages its capital struclure and makes adjustments to it, in ight of changes in economic conditions or
its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the ¢apital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Particulars At 31st March 2022 At 31st March 2021

Non-current Borrowings 2,830.99 1,483.77
Current Borrowings 2,286.28 3,897.87
Interest on Long-term borrowings 5.46 -
Freference Capital 4,500.00 4,500.00
Net Dabt 8,622.73 4,881.64
Equity " 2,000.00 2,000.00
Other Equity (410.48) (879.49)
Total Capital 1,589,52 1.120.51
Debit | Equity : 6.05 8.82
Gearing ratio (%) 605.39%| 881.89%

38 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under, to lhe extent the Company
has received intimation from the ‘Suppliers’ regarding their status under the Act.

Rs, In Lakh
Particulars At 31st March 2022 At 31st March 2021
i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each suppler at
the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -

Interest due on above - R
ii} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Secfion 16 of the Micre, Small 20d Medium -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of the payment made lo|
the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period.

iif} IMerest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the pericd) but without adding interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each - -
accounting year

v} interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - .-
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

Dues fo Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been idenlified on the basis of information
collected by the Management.

38 (a) Segment Reporting - Ind AS 108

The business activily of the company falls within one broad business segment viz. “Vitrified Tiles” and sale of the product is within the
country.

Information about major cuslomers:
Customer 1 - Rs,4562.87 lakhs
Customer 2 - R5.4490.86 lakhs

39 [b) Impact - CGVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic refating to Covid-19 in the preparation of these
financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the assumptions
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global ecenomic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of
approval of these financial statements, used internal and extemal sources of information including credit reports and refated information
and economic forecasts and expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recavered. ‘The tmpact of Covid-19 on lhe
Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

39 {c) Note on "Coda on Security, 20207

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Securily, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuily. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Sacial Security, 2020 on
November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under aclive consideration by the Ministry. The Company
will assess the impact and its evalualion once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in
the period in which, the Code becomes effeclive and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.
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40 Analytical Ratigs

Variance
Ratio Numerator Benominator Current Year Previous year % [Reasons
Decrease in current liabilities &
Curent ratio {in imes) Total current Assels Total current fiabilities 133 0.92 44.69(rapayment of un-secured foan|
to holding company.
; A . . . Increase in net profit lax &
Debt-equity ratio {in limes) Debt consists of borrowings Total equity 6.05 882 <31.39 cepayment of tem loans
Earnings before debt service =
; io (in |Met profit after taxes + non cash inp = Increase in ast profit tax as
pebt service coverage ratio (in ngt_s:emc- Interest + 082 0.49 68.43[compared to the last financial
times) operating expanses + Interest + |Principle repayments year
Other non cash adjustments
Increase in net profit tax as
Retum on equity ratia (in %) Profit for the year Avorage lotal equity 35% -55%| -162.95[compared to the last financial
year
" Increase in  tumover as,
I;‘:ﬁf::)aensf)iumover ratio Revenue from operations Average total inventory 4.58 2,89 58.14 |compared to the fast financial
year
'(I;;a:iirﬁ;z)cewables tumover ratio Revenue from operations Average Yrade recgivables 003 0.04 -23.13(-
Increase in purchases as
compared to the last fiancials|
i year, In last financial year the
Etéi‘:e(iﬂ atsi';lzlse)s tumaver Sav;rrlr;tsenal purehaes + Other Average lrade payables 5.50 362 51.73|company has stopped
8 production for the period April
2020 - July 2020 due Covid
pendamic
Average  working - capital Ingrease  in  lumaover as
. " . Ll Ve
?iili‘i:r:l; 's‘;‘l tumovar ratio Revenue from operalions {ie, Tolal aurrnet assles 7.80 -15.44( -i50.48|compared to the fast financial
. ear
less Total current liabilities) Y
Increase in net profit tax as
Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revernue from operalions 5% -7%]| -171.37|compared to the last financial
year
" } Capital emplayed = Net Increase in net profit tax as
*Zf“ﬁ;,ﬂ"; eneepltalemployed | Barming before tax and finance |, oy, Total debt + 8% -1%|  -787.10|compared 1o the last financial
Deferrad tax liabilitizs year
Inome generated from invested |Average invested funds in
Return on Investment funds \reasury invastmens NA NA NA|-
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41 Commitments and Contingencies

Rs, In Lakh
A.|Contingent Liabilities 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Dividend on 1% Cumulative Praference Shares 135.00 90.00
Note: Relates to Financial year 2019-20, 2620-21 & 2021.22
B.|Commitiements 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021 |
Estimated amount of conlracls remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 155.93 Nil
for {net of advances) - !

42 Previous Year figures have been regrouped wheraver necessary.

As per our Report of even date

For M Anandam & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:0001255

For and on behalf of the board

74@““2,‘/ T

B V' Suresh Kumar CVK Raju K Mohan Raju
Partnier CEO & Director Director
M.No: 212187 DIN: 07337953 DIN: 03537592
RK Pooja K Nagabhushana®Rao
Place: Hyderabad Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30.04.2022 M.No: Ad41361 PAN: AWFPKS691TN




